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rPPEARANCES : 

NANCY B. WHITE , JAMES MEZA, 111 , and R. DOUGLAS 

ACKEY, c/o Nancy Sims, 150 South Monroe Street ,  Sui te  400, 

-a1 1 ahassee, F1 or ida  32301 , appearing on behal f o f  Bel 1 South 

'elecommunications, Inc.  

ANTHONY PARKS, Post O f f i c e  Box 812283, 

3oca Raton, F lo r ida  33481, appearing pro se. 

P A l T Y  CHRISTENSEN, F lo r ida  Pub1 i c  Service 

:ommi ssi on , D i  v i  s i  on o f  Legal Services , 2540 Shumard 

lak Boulevard, Tal 1 ahassee, F lo r ida  32399-0870, 

ippearing on behalf  o f  the Commission S t a f f .  
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P R O C E E D I N G S  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Counsel, read the not ice.  

MS. CHRISTENSEN: By not ice issued January 14th, 

2002, t h i s  time and place have been set f o r  a hearing i n  Docket 

Vumber 000028-TL, p e t i t i o n  by Bel lSouth Telecommunications, 

Inc. f o r  waiver o f  Rules 25-4.107, 25-4.108, and 25-4.113, 

Flor ida Administrat ive Code, which requires the prov is ion o f  

basic t e l  ecommuni cations servi  ce t o  ce r ta i  n 1 oca t i  ons and 

persons. The purpose o f  the hearing - - o f  t h i s  hearing i s  as 

set f o r t h  i n  the  not ice.  

CHAIRMAN JABER: L e t ' s  take appearances. 

MR. MEZA: Jim Meza on behalf o f  BellSouth. 

MS. CHRISTENSEN: P a t r i c i a  Christensen on behalf o f  

the Commi ss i  on. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Ms. Chri stensen, I understand tha t  

you have been contacted by Mr. Anthony Parks and he has had a 

delay i n  attending the  hearing. Do you want t o  update the r e s t  

o f  the Commi ssioners, please? 

MS. CHRISTENSEN: Certainly.  My o f f i c e  received a 

message from M r .  Parks t h i s  morning s t a t i n g  t h a t  he would be a 

ha l f -hour  t o  45 minutes l a t e ,  apparently due t o  the  f a c t  t ha t  

h i s  br iefcase d i d  not a r r i v e  on the same plane t h a t  he did.  So 

he ca l led  and l e f t  t h a t  message. I d i d  not speak w i th  him 

d i r e c t l y ,  but  t h a t  was l e f t  w i t h  one o f  our secretaries t h i s  

morning. And I l e f t  a message on h i s  cellphone t o  l e t  him know 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

6 

ve received h i s  message. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners, I am inc l i ned  t o  go 

jhead and take a 45-minute break, reconvene a t  10:15 t o  al low 

4r. Parks an opportunity t o  a r r i ve .  A t  10:15 we w i l l  reconvene 

r i t h  o r  without Mr. Parks. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Let me make sure, the message 

from M r .  Parks was t h a t  he would be delayed 30 t o  45 minutes a t  

the most? 

MS. CHRISTENSEN: That i s  correct ;  t h a t  i s  my 

Anderstanding. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So i f  we reconvene, then, a t  

10:15 we should be f ine?  

MS. CHRISTENSEN: That would be my understanding. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: That 's what we w i l l  do, we w i l l  

reconvene a t  10 : 15. 

Thank you, Ms. Chri stensen. 

( O f f  the record. 1 
CHAIRMAN JABER: We w i l l  reconvene the hearing. And 

I w i l l  swear i n  witnesses and then we w i l l  make sure we have 

a l l  the appearances we need t o  have. So those i n  the room t h a t  

have p r e f i l e d  testimony, go ahead and stand and ra ise  your 

r i g h t  hand. 

(Witnesses c o l l e c t i v e l y  sworn. 1 
CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you. A l l  r i g h t .  Mr. Parks, 

where we were - - l e t ' s  see, we convened the hearing a t  9:30, we 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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aok M r .  Meza's appearance, which i s  j u s t  s t a t i n g  h i s  name and 

ddress f o r  the record, so - -  I ' m  sorry? 

MR. PARKS: ( Inaudible. Microphone not on.) 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Yes. Turn on the button. That 

i n t o  the u t ton  r i g h t  there. There you go. And t a l k  

icrophone, l e t ' s  t e s t  it. 

MR. PARKS: Testing. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: That 's it. Okay. 

MR. PARKS: I ' v e  got it. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: And now tha t  you 

Ind s tate your name. 

r e  here, go ahead 

MR. PARKS: My name i s  Anthony Parks. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  And go ahead and give 

four address f o r  the record. 

MR. PARKS: My current address i s  6755 Montego 

!oulevard i n  Boca Raton. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you. This i s  the par t  o f  the 

iroceeding where we al low the company or  the par t ies  t o  b r i ng  

in t h e i r  witnesses t o  the stand and t e s t i f y .  Now, I want t o  

zlarify w i th  you, as we d i d  i n  the prehearing conference, you 

nay reca l l  I made sure t h a t  you understood t h a t  you w i l l  be 

able t o  cross-examine the BellSouth witnesses. Now, i t  i s  my 

understanding tha t  - -  i t  i s  my understanding t h a t  the witnesses 

are going t o  appear as a panel. 

MR. MEZA: That i s  correct .  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21  

22 

23 

24 

25 

8 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Now, Ms. Christensen, don ' t  l e t  me 

skip anything, but i t  i s  my in ten t i on  t o  go ahead and c a l l  up 

the witnesses and l e t  them begin t h e i r  testimony. 

MS. CHRISTENSEN: Well, s t a f f  notes t h a t  the exh ib i t  

f i l e d  by BellSouth i n  i t s  p r e f i l e d  testimony was granted 

conf ident ia l  c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  pursuant t o  Order Number PSC 

D10723-TL t h a t  was issued March 23rd, 2001, and we would 

request t h a t  the presiding o f f i c e r  remind the par t ies  and the 

ditnesses t o  avoid verbal iz ing the conf ident ia l  information i n  

such a way t h a t  would compromise the conf ident ia l  information 

as required by the prehearing order. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Yes. Let me remind the witnesses 

and counsel and Mr. Parks. The information t h a t  i s  contained 

i n  Exh ib i t  Number 1 t o  the p r e f i l e d  testimony i s  conf ident ia l .  

Mr. Parks, what tha t  means i s  t h a t  you can ' t  reveal 

i n  your questions the actual information. You could ask around 

it. You could say - - and I don ' t  have the actual exh ib i t  i n  

f ron t  o f  me, but,  f o r  example, you could say the information as 

contained on Line 1, and ask your question. You need t o  be 

very careful not t o  reveal the actual content o f  the 

information. And i n  asking the questions i f  you need 

c l a r i f i c a t i o n  from BellSouth counsel, we can take a break and 

allow tha t  t o  happen. A l l  r i g h t ?  

MR. PARKS: Okay. Fine. 

MR. MEZA: Chairman Jaber, I j u s t  have one point  o f  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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l a r i f i c a t i o n ,  and tha t  i s  Mr. Parks on Fr iday f i l e d  another 

lot ion t o  continue, and I don ' t  know i f  tha t  has been addressed 

r resolved. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Ms. Christensen, i t  i s  my 

inderstanding t h a t  my order addresses the motion f o r  

:ontinuance up t o  the one t h a t  was f i l e d  Fr iday evening. Do 

~ O U  need t o  correct  me? 

MS. CHRISTENSEN: No, t h a t  i s  correct .  The one t h a t  

/as f i l e d  p r i o r  i n  the week we addressed through the motion, 

lowever, M r .  Parks d i d  f i l e  about three o 'c lock on Fr iday 

i f ternoon a renewed motion t o  continue, I believe, based on 

iankruptcy. And M r .  Meza has also f i l e d  h i s  response and we 

lave not addressed tha t  motion. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. So t h a t  i s  outstanding. 

Mr. Parks, you f i l e d  a motion a l leg ing t h a t  the 

iankruptcy proceeding - - 
MR. PARKS: Yes. What happened was my attorney f i l e d  

3 motion t o  dismiss tha t  ea r l y  on l a s t  week. And Mr. Meza and 

1 i n  a conversation said the judge might have granted it. 

don't know, as o f  Friday morning I know he d i d n ' t ,  but  I d i d n ' t  

check Friday afternoon. And i f  he has an order saying t h a t ,  

then - -  I don ' t  know the answer t o  t h a t  question. 

I 

CHAIRMAN JABER: We1 1, you ' re  here, BellSouth i s  

here, the three Commissioners are here, we are going t o  move 

forward. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MR. PARKS: I have no problems. I would rather  not 

lave t o  come back, t o  be qu i te  frank w i t h  you. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  So f o r  purposes o f  the 

.ecord t h a t  renewed motion f o r  a continuance i s  denied. 

MR. PARKS: Fine. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  L e t ' s  get s tar ted.  Mr. 

Seza, c a l l  your witnesses. 

MR. MEZA: BellSouth would l i k e  t o  c a l l  Nancy Sims 

md P a t r i c i a  Shields. 
- - - - I  

NANCY SIMS AND PATRICIA SHIELDS 

vas ca l l ed  as a witness on behal f  o f  BellSouth 

relecommunications, Inc . ,  and, having been du ly  sworn, 

t e s t i f i e d  as fo l lows: 

DIRECT EXAM1 NATION 

3Y MR. MEZA: 

Q Would the  both o f  you please s ta te  your name and 

address f o r  the record? 

A (By Ms. Shields) P a t r i c i a  Shields, 150 West F lag ler  

Street, M i  ami F1 or ida.  

A (By Ms. Sims) Nancy Sims, 150 South Monroe Street,  

Suite 400, Tal 1 ahassee, F lor ida.  

Q 

A (By Ms. Shields) BellSouth. 

A (By Ms. Sims) BellSouth Telecommunications. 

By whom are each o f  you employed? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q Have you previously caused t o  be prepared and 

r e f i l e d  i n  t h i s  case d i r e c t  panel testimony? 

A (By Ms. Shields) Yes. 

A (By Ms. Sims) Yes. 

Q Do you have any substantive addit ions, corrections, 

3 r  changes t h a t  you would l i k e  t o  make t o  t h a t  testimony? 

A (By Ms. Shields) Yes, I do. On Item Number 16, on 

the check page, which i s  the copies o f  the checks, instead o f  

the informat ion being Number 16, i t  should s ta te  Number 17. 

I ' m  sorry. 

MR. PARKS: I have no idea what document she i s  

re fe r r i ng  t o .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Hang on a second, M r .  Parks. 

Are you looking a t  your testimony, Ms. Shields? 

WITNESS SHIELDS: I ' m  looking a t  the conf ident ia l ,  

I ' m  sorry. The propr ie tary  information. The exh ib i t  i n  the 

back we have copies o f  the canceled checks, which was page - -  
MR. PARKS: I ' m  not i n  possession o f  t ha t .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Hang on, Mr. Parks. The court  

reporter can only  record one person a t  a time. 

MR. PARKS: My apol ogi es . 
CHAIRMAN JABER: L e t ' s  do t h i s ,  Ms. Shields. Are 

there any changes t o  your p r e f i l e d  testimony, any corrections 

there? 

WITNESS SHIELDS: NO. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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CHAIRMAN JABER: Ms. Sims, any corrections there? 

WITNESS SIMS: NO. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  The p re f  

testimony o f  Nancy H. Sims and Pa t r i c i a  K. Shie 

inserted i n t o  the record as though read. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

TESTIMONY OF NANCY H. SlMS AND PATRICIA K. SHIELDS 

AS A PANEL 

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DOCKET NO. 000028-TP 

JANUARY 10,2001 

FOR EACH OF THE WITNESSES ON THE PANEL, PLEASE STATE 

YOUR NAME, YOUR BUSINESS ADDRESS, AND YOUR POSITION 

WITH BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC. (“BELLSOUTH”). 

My name is Nancy H. Sims. My business address is 150 So. Monroe - 
St., Suite 400, Tallahassee, Florida 32301. I am Director of Regulatory 

Relations for BellSouth’s Florida operations. I have served in my 

present position since 1994. 

My name is Patricia K. Shields. My business address is 150 W. 

Flagler St., Miami, Florida. I am a Manager in the Executive Appeals 

Office and have sewed in my present position since 1990. 

PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR BACKGROUND AND EXPERIENCE. 

Nancy H. Sims 

I graduated from North Carolina State University in 1971 with a 

Bachelor of Science Degree. In 1973 I was employed by Southern 

1 
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Bell as an Outside Plant Forecaster in Charlotte, North Carolina. 

Since that time I have held various positions with the Company, which 

included responsibility for pricing and tariffing of a variety of local 

exchange and interconnection services for the nine state BellSouth 

region. I also worked for AT&T on the Department of Justice antitrust 

case prior to divestiture. I am currently assigned to the position of 

Director of Regulatory Relations for BellSouth in the state of Florida. 

Patricia K. Shields 

I was employed by Southern Bell in 1963 in the Comptrollers 

Department. I have held various positions with the Company including 

service representative in the residential and the business office with 

responsibility for sales, service and collections. I have held 

management positions in administration, personnel, security and 

customer service. I was appointed to my present position as Manager 

in the Executive Appeals Office in 1990. 

- 

HAVE YOU TESTIFIED PREVIOUSLY BEFORE ANY STATE PUBLIC 

SERVICE COMMISSION? 

Nancy H. Sims 

Yes, I have testified numerous times in Florida, South Caroli 

Carolina, Georgia, Louisiana, Alabama and Mississippi. 

rth 
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Patricia K. Shields 

No. 

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF THE TESTIMONY BEING FILED 

TODAY? 

We will present BellSouth’s position on why the Florida Public Service 

Commission should grant BellSouth’s request for a waiver of Rules 25- 

4.107, 25-4.108 and 25-4.1 13, Florida Administrative Code, pursuant’ 

to Section 120.542, Florida Statutes that was filed with the 

Commission on January 10, 2000. The purpose of this waiver is to 

allow BellSouth to forego the future provision of service to Anthony 

Parks, former customer of BellSouth, and to the locations that he 

currently owns, leases, or with which he is, in any way, associated. 

These locations, upon information and belief, include 4750 S. Ocean 

Blvd., Apt. 210, Highland Beach, Florida and 6050 Verde Trail S. B4 

Apt. 405, Boca Raton, Florida. Mr. Parks may be associated with 

other locations unknown to BellSouth. 

- 

WHAT ARE THE SPECIFIC FLORIDA RULES INVOLVED IN 

BELLSOUTH’S WAIVER REQUEST? 

BellSouth’s waiver request includes Rules 25-4.107, 25-4.108 and 25- 

4.1 13, Florida Administrative Code, and they cover Information to 

Customers, Initiation of Service, and Refusal or Discontinuance of 

3 
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Service by the Company, respectively. 

WHAT IS BELLSOUTH’S UNDERSTANDING OF THE 

REQUIREMENTS OF THE CURRENT RULES THAT ARE INVOLVED 

IN BELLSOUTH’S WAIVER REQUEST? 

Generally, these rules require a local exchange company to provide 

information and assistance “as is reasonable” to any customer in. order 

for him to obtain telephone service. The rules also require the 

Company to apply its policy for initiation of service in a uniform 

manner, and upon compliance by the applicant, ‘I to initiate service 

without unreasonable delay.” Rule 25-4.1 13 details the conditions 

under which the Company may or may not refuse or discontinue 

service. 

SHOULD BELLSOUTH BE GRANTED A WAIVER OF RULES 25- 

4.107, 25-4.108, AND 25-4.1 13, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, 

AS SET FORTH IN ITS PETITION? 

Yes, the waiver should be granted. BellSouth is seeking relief from 

having to provide service to Mr. Anthony Parks, as well as to any 

locations that he currently owns, leases or is associated with. Mr. 

Parks has been linked to at least twenty-five separate accounts with 

BellSouth, both residence and business, since 1992. He has used 

many avenues to obtain service, and, in every instance, his account 

4 
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has been disconnected for fraudulent practices and/or for nonpayment. 

Mr. Parks currently owes BellSouth more than $22,750 in past due 

billing. 

On several occasions, Mr. Parks has misled the Company inprder to 

obtain telephone service. For instance, he has written several checks 

to prevent disconnection of service, only to immediately stop payment 

of the checks. He has used multiple social security numbers and has 

written checks on closed accounts. He has also used false credit 

information in setting up the business accounts, including providing 

BellSouth with the names of businesses that are not recognized by the 

Florida Secretary of State and using the name of a legitimate 

corporation without permission. The details of these transactions are 

provided in exhibit NHSPKS no. 1, which is attached to this testimony. 

Also, in at least eight situations, appeals have been submitted by Mr. 

Parks to the Commission Staff, and all have been found to be without 

merit. 

- 

DOES THE APPLICATION OF RULES 25-4.107,25-4.108 AND 

25-4.1 13, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, AS SET 

FORTH IN BELLSOUTH’S PETITION, CREATE A 

SUBSTANTIAL HARDSHIP FOR BELLSOUTH OR VIOLATE 

PRINCIPLES OF FAIRNESS? 

Yes. Mr. Parks has cost the Company, as well as the 
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Commission Staff, a great deal of time and money. He has 

taken time away from BellSouth service representatives and 

Commission Staff Appeals personnel that could have been used 

more efficiently and effectively to handle valid customer 

concerns and needs. There is no way to accurately determine 

the number of hours that have been involved in dealing with Mr. 

Parks in repeatedly having to handle calls into the business 

office to establish service, to investigate credit, employment and 

corporate information, to send out denial notices, to process 

checks with insufficient funds, to process checks that have had 

payment stopped, to disconnect service, to reconnect service, 

to answer Commission inquiries and participate in informal 

conferences with the Commission Appeals Staff. 

WHY DIDN’T BELLSOUTH DISCONNECT MR. PARKS WHEN 

THESE SITUATIONS OCCURRED? 

Rule 25-4.1 13 “Refusal or Discontinuance of Service by Company” 

details situations where service may or may not be refused or 

discontinued. Sections (4)(a), (b), (c) and (d) of this rule provide for 

situations where service should not be refused nor denied for 

delinquent payment. They state: 

“The following shall not constitute sufficient cause for refusal or 

discontinuance of service to an applicant or customer: 
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(a) Delinquency in payment for service by a previous occupant of 

the premises, unless the current applicant or customer occupied 

the premises at the time the delinquency occurred and the 

previous customer continues to occupy the premises and such 

previous customer shall benefit from such new sewice. 

(b) Delinquency in payment for service by a present occupant who 

was delinquent at another address and subsequently joined the 

household ,of the customer in good standing. 

(c) Delinquency in payment for separate telephone service of 

another customer in the same residence. 

(d) Failure to pay for business service at a different location and a 

different telephone number shall not constitute sufficient cause 

for refusal of residence service or vice versa.” 

Due to this rule, Mr. Parks has repeatedly been able to obtain 

telephone service by gaming the rule. By changing names, addresses 

and using business facades, he has been able to manipulate the 

system. Mr. Parks has skirted these rules by having others call the 

BellSouth business office for him and establish service in the caller’s 

name. The location where service was established was found to be 

owned by or leased to Mr. Parks, or Mr. Parks would call in to discuss 

service at that location. Additionally, checks that were received to pay 

for service at these locations were signed by Mr. Parks. BellSouth has 

provided service to at least six different addresses and seven different 

business names that have been linked to Mr. Parks (see detailed 
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information in exhibit NHS/PKS no.1). Mr. Parks has misled the 

Commission Staff on many occasions. He has and will use the 

Commission’s rules to dispute legitimate charges in order to delay 

disconnection of service. As stated previously, in at least eight 

situations, appeals have gone to the Commission Staff, all without 

merit. 

BellSouth has been more than fair in giving Mr. Parks every 

opportunity to establish service and to keep service. BellSouth has 

spent an inordinate amount of time, money and resources on treating 

Mr. Parks and his related accounts. This is time, money and 

resources that had to be redirected from providing service to 

BellSouth’s other customers. In every instance, BellSouth has 

provided service and has not been paid for legitimate charges. 

. 

HAS BELLSOUTH EVER REQUESTED A WAIVER OF THESE 

RULES BEFORE? 

No, Bellsouth has never requested a waiver of these rules. This is an 

extremely unique situation, which BellSouth takes very seriously. The 

decision to ask for this waiver was not entered into lightly, and was 

considered to be our last resort. It does not make good business 

sense to continue to allow a customer to take advantage of a business 

to the detriment of that business’s other customers. It is not 

BellSouth’s intention to use waiver requests in the future in general for 
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2 ?  
this purpose. It is simply that with Mr. Parks, BellSouth has no choice, 

IN THE EVENT THAT BELLSOUTH IS GRANTED A WAIVER OF 

RULES 25-4.107,25-4.108 AND 25-4.1 13, FLORIDA 

ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, AS SET FORTH IN ITS PETITION, WILL 

THE PURPOSE OF THE UNDERLYING STATUTES BE ACHIEVED 

BY OTHER MEANS? 

Yes. BellSouth’s waiver request meets the standards of Section 

120.542, Florida Statutes. The purpose of the underlying statutes, 

364.03, 364.04, 364.19, and 427.704 is, in part, to promote the public 

health, safety and welfare by ensuring that basic local 

telecommunications services are available to all consumers. 

BellSouth’s waiver will not undermine this purpose. The statutes 

entitle BellSouth to receive rates and set terms for those services. 

Continuing to require BellSouth to provide service to Mr. Parks and the 

associated locations could result in a negative impact on BellSouth’s 

other ratepayers, in terms of time and expense. 

Mr. Parks has available to him alternatives to BellSouth’s local 

exchange service. There are several Alternative Local Exchange 

Carriers (ALECs) providing residence and business local exchange 

services in the 561,954 and 305 area codes in Florida. These ALECs 

provide service through resale and through the use of their own 

facilities. In addition, there are several wireless carriers offering very 
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reasonable flat and measured rate calling plans. 

WHAT IS THE COMMISSION’S JURISDICTION IN THIS MATTER 

(LEGAL ISSUE)? 

This is a legal issue, which BellSouth will address in our brief to be 

filed in this proceeding. Although we are not attorneys, it is our opinion 

that the Commission does have jurisdiction in this matter. In this case, 

state law, not federal law, is the basis for the rules that govern the 

provision of telecommunications service to Mr. Parks and this 

requested waiver. 

PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR TESTIMONY. 

The Florida Public Service Commission should grant BellSouth’s 

request for a waiver of Rules 25-4.107, 25-4.108 and 25-4.1 13, Florida 

Administrative Code, which would allow BellSouth to forego the future 

provision of service to Mr. Anthony Parks, former customer of 

BellSouth, and to the locations that he currently owns, leases, or with 

which he is in any way associated. BellSouth, as well as the 

Commission Staff has made every effort to accommodate Mr. Parks 

(see attached exhibit NHS/PKS no.l), but we can no longer afford to 

extend our resources and services without reimbursement. Mr. Parks 

will not be without service, as he has the ability to obtain basic local 

exchange telephone service from various ALECs serving the 
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Now, w i t h  respect t o  your conf ident ia l  exh ib i t ,  you 

have a correction? 

WITNESS SHIELDS: That ' s correct .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Parks, do you remember the 

exh ib i t  attached t o  the  testimony t h a t  contained conf ident ia l  

information? She i s  correct ing a number on tha t .  And Mr. Meza 

d i l l  hand you a copy so t h a t  you can use i t  f o r  the hearing. 

411 r i g h t .  

Now, Ms. Shields, I need you t o  go t o  the page. And 

l e t ' s  do t h i s  slowly and make sure t h a t  no one i s  revealing any 

conf ident i  a1 information. 

WITNESS SHIELDS: Okay. I t ' s  Page 23 o f  the exh ib i t .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Are you w i t h  me, Mr. Parks? 

MR. PARKS: What page i s  tha t?  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Page 23. A l l  r i g h t .  And there are 

copies o f  checks. And what i s  your correct ion? 

WITNESS SHIELDS: Okay. It has a Number 16, which we 

are referencing on the l e f t -hand  side, t h a t  should be Number 

17. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Any other changes t o  t h i s  exh ib i t?  

WITNESS SHIELDS: Not t o  t h i s  one. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Parks, on Page 23 o f  25, do you 

see the number on the  l e f t -hand  side i nd i ca t i ng  16? 

MR. PARKS: It says 16, yes. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: That should be 17. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

25 

MR. PARKS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: What are your other corrections, Ms. 

Shi e l  ds? 

WITNESS SHIELDS: On Page 11 o f  the exh ib i t  where we 

come t o  Account Number 18, halfway down i n  tha t  paragraph there 

i s  a paragraph or  a sentence t h a t  states another attempt. That 

needs t o  be moved over t o  Item Number 19. I n  19 the 

information needs t o  be deleted. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  

WITNESS SHIELDS: And i n  addi t ion,  on 19 the address 

needs t o  be corrected t o  the address t h a t  i s  i n  the paragraph 

that  we have now corrected. 

MR. PARKS: I ' m  missing the correct ion on t h i s  one. 

Nhich i tem i s  she correct ing? 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  Mr. Parks, I w i l l  walk 

you through i t  j u s t  as soon as I know t h a t  I understand it. 

Hang on. A l l  r i g h t .  

Ms. Shields, what you are saying, the paragraph 

beginning - -  the sentence beginning another attempt needs t o  be 

moved. Stay w i th  me, Mr. Parks. Needs t o  be moved t o  Account 

Number 19? 

WITNESS SHIELDS: That I s correct .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: And the address t h a t  i s  cur ren t ly  

1 i s t e d  under Account Number 19 needs t o  be corrected t o  

correspond w i th  the paragraph we j u s t  moved? 
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WITNESS SHIELDS: That s correct .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Meza, why don ' t  you wa lk  over t o  

4r. Parks and make sure he has got those changes. And I w i l l  

lave t o  t e l l  you a l l ,  f o r  fu ture reference when you have 

2hanges l i k e  t h i s  t o  conf ident ia l  exh ib i ts ,  rev ise them. 

Any other changes, Ms. Shields? 

WITNESS SHIELDS: NO. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  

MR. MEZA: Chairman Jaber, I would ask t h a t  the panel 

h i b i t s  be marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. That would be NHS/PKS-1, 

Exhib i t  Number 1 f o r  the hearing. I s  t h a t  r i g h t ,  Mr. Meza? 

That i s  the only  e x h i b i t  I have. 

MR. MEZA: Yes, ma'am. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. It i s  i d e n t i f i e d  as Exh ib i t  

Number 1. 

(Exhib i t  1 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

MR. MEZA: I now tender them f o r  cross. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Parks, t h i s  i s  the opportunity 

have t o  cross-examine these witnesses based on t h e i r  

tesdmony t h a t  they p re f i l ed .  

MR. PARKS: Okay. Do you want me t o  cross-examine 

them now? 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Yes. This would be your opportunity 

t o  question them. 

YOU 
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MR. PARKS: That 's f i n e .  A l l  r i g h t .  

CROSS EXAM1 NATI ON 

3Y MR. PARKS: 

Q Do you know a Nicholas Aversa, have you spoken t o  him 

iefore? Ms. Shields, I am r e f e r r i n g  t o .  

A (By Ms. Shields) Have I spoken t o  - -  I ' m  sorry, you 

say have I spoken - -  

Q 
A Yes. 

Q Okay. Did you t e l l  him a t  one po in t  t h a t  you were 

disconnecting h i s  service because you were not going t o  supp 

any - -  you don ' t  want t o  supply service t o  any tenants o f  

h t h o n y  Parks? 

Have you spoken t o  a Nicholas Aversa, A - V - E - R - S - A ?  

A No, I don' t  reca l l  t h a t .  

Q But you do reca l l  t a l k i n g  t o  him? 

A I have spoken t o  him on occasion. 

Q Right. Okay. What about Christopher Nutter, have 

you spoken t o  him? 

A Yes. 

Q 

A No, I don ' t  reca l l  t h a t .  

You t o l d  him the same thing? 

MR. PARKS: Just t o  the Commission, I ' m  j u s t  

addressing - -  I don ' t  know procedure-wise how t o  handle t h i s .  

These ind iv idua ls  have w r i t t e n  a f f i d a v i t s ,  ce r ta in  ones are  

notarized. They would be here today, they also are reachable 
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y phone, i f  necessary, f o r  v e r i f i c a t i o n  purposes. 

ave put  t h i s  i n  wr i t ing ,  t h e i r  contacts w i th  Ms. Shields. 

But they 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  What I need you t o  do 

s - - i f  you don ' t  have an ex t ra  copy, show - - 
MR. PARKS: I do. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Great. Pass tha t  out t o  Mr. Meza, 

i r s t ,  and l e t ' s  make sure he doesn't have an object ion t o  

hat. And, Mr. Parks, before you do anything more, l e t ' s  make 

ure there i s  no objection. And i f  there i s n ' t ,  we can 

den t i f y  i t  as an exh ib i t  f o r  the  hearing. 

MR. MEZA: For the  record, BellSouth objects t o  the 

ntroduct ion o f  these a f f i d a v i t s .  F i r s t ,  the one f o r  M r .  

,versa i s  not notarized, does not appear t o  be notarized. And 

l s o  on the grounds o f  relevance and on the grounds o f  hearsay. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Parks, do you have an ex t ra  copy 

'or me? 

MR. PARKS: Well, a lso Mr. Nutter, there i s  two o f  

:hem. He d i d n ' t  respond t o  the other one. Yes, I should have. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  The object ion i s  - -  
Ir. Parks, I ' m  going t o  give you an opportunity t o  respond t o  

;he objection, but the object ion i s  t ha t  one o f  these i s  not 

iotarized. The other ob ject ion i s  t ha t  they are not  relevant 

;o the proceeding. 

MR. PARKS: Okay. Can I respond now? 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Yes. 
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MR. PARKS: F i r s t  o f  a l l ,  I beg t o  d i f f e r  t ha t  they 

i re.  F i r s t  o f  a l l ,  number one, i n  reference t o  the 

io ta r iza t ion ,  I am we1 1 aware - - and I would address i t  two 

days. F i r s t  o f  a l l ,  number one, i t  was brought t o  me by my 

i t torney tha t  under s ta te  l a w  there i s  a section t h a t  i f  an 

i f f i d a v i t ,  because t h i s  has come up i n  court  before, an 

i f f i d a v i t  can be witnessed and not notarized and i t  can s t i l l  

)e v a l i d  under s ta te l a w  i f  the language i n  there states t h a t  

;he statements are being made under penalty o f  per jury .  

there i s  a s ta te l a w  t h a t  addresses a f f i d a v i t s  as f a r  as the 

i a l i d i t y  o f  t ha t  one. That only goes t o  one o f  them. The 

i t he r  one fo r  Christopher Nutter i s  notarized. That s because 

vhere he was a t  the time, he d i d n ' t  - -  because I wasn t sure 

that t ha t  hearing was going t o  happen t h i s  week, and so I sor t  

I f  had t o  have these things so r t  o f  expedited and there wasn't 

3lways a notary avai lab le t o  both par t ies.  

So 

As f a r  as the relevance i s  concerned, they are t r y i n g  

to  make we out - -  based upon the - -  and I ' m  going t o  t e l l  you, 

quite factua l ly ,  t h a t  the information i n  t h i s  conf ident ia l  

2xh ib i t  or whatever you c a l l  i t  tha t  says propr ie tary ,  I d i d  

not receive a l l  o f  t h i s  documentation p r i o r  t o  t h i s  hearing, so 

I was somewhat unprepared t o  deal w i th  t h i s  today. However, I 

am going t o  deal w i t h  i t  as best as I possibly can. 

However, i n  looking over the p e t i t i o n  t h a t  I received 

on the 17th o f  A p r i l ,  which i s  the day before the hearing, 
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vhich was faxed t o  me which I have r i g h t  here, BellSouth i s  

:ontending tha t  I am using fa lse  information, I ' m  doing t h i s ,  

I ' m  doing tha t ,  I ' m  doing the other, and t h i s  i s  t o  document 

that they have not acted proper ly i n  good f a i t h ,  and t h a t  the 

"easons t h a t  they are g i v ing  i s  not leg i t imate.  And these 

indiv iduals,  the informat ion i s  bas i ca l l y  t o  impeach and t o  

2ontradi c t  tha t .  

For example, the one - -  on both occasions, and I ' m  

re fe r r i ng  t o  the relevance o f  t h i s ,  they made payment 

wrangements f o r  whatever the reasons were, and then apparently 

I guess w i th  whatever so-ca l led authorized representative o f  

3ellSouth made it, and then l a t e r  on suddenly the phones are 

interrupted. I am the landlord. O f  course, I get the c a l l s  

because according t o  the reasons t h a t  are given i s  because i t  

i s  re la ted  t o  Anthony Parks, which obviously i s  me, so the 

tenant i s  ce r ta in l y  going t o  c a l l  me t o  f i n d  out what i s  going 

on w i t h  t h i s .  

And so, therefore - -  and, then when I c a l l  up t o  f i n d  

out what i s  going on, apparently Ms. Shields intervenes and 

then - -  a t  leas t  t ha t  i s  the a l legat ion  I ' m  making here, and 

then the reason - -  then they are t o l d  t h a t  the arrangements 

tha t  were made are not being, are not going t o  be followed - -  
the arrangements tha t  were made - -  the response tha t  I got from 

Ms. Shields and the others were tha t  the arrangements being 

made are being canceled because tha t  person who made i t  wasn't 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21  

22 

23 

24 

25 

31 

3uthorized t o  make it. 

So what I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  say i s  t h a t  BellSouth has acted 

i n  bad f a i t h  which has generated c o n f l i c t s  w i th  tenants as a 

?esul t  o f  me, so i t  has caused so r t  o f  a domino e f f e c t ,  so I 

think i t  i s  relevant. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  M r .  Parks, l e t  me give 

s t a f f  counsel an opportunity t o  get back t o  her seat. And do 

you have a recommendation f o r  whether a f f i d a v i t s  can come i n  

M i  thout notar izat ion? 

MS. CHRISTENSEN : Commi ss i  oner , my understanding i s 

that - -  I have concerns p a r t i c u l a r l y  w i t h  the statement t h a t  

has not been sworn to .  P a r t i c u l a r l y  when Mr. Parks has not 

p re f i l ed  testimony o r  has not indicated i n  the prehearing order 

and the prehearing statement which he d i d  not f i l e  t h a t  he was 

planning on providing any testimony or  witnesses or  any 

exhibi ts,  t ha t  these exh ib i ts  would be allowed i n .  But 

granting Mr. Parks some l a t i t u d e  f o r  being a layperson, I s t i l l  

have concerns t h a t  i t  i s  not notarized, t ha t  i t  would make i t  

impossi b l  e f o r  Bel 1 South t o  cross - exami ne or t e s t  the verac i ty  

o f  t h i s  witness which they were not aware would be providing 

testimony i n  t h i s  matter. So s t a f f  would recommend a t  t h i s  

po int  t o  exclude t h a t  testimony. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Parks, here i s  what I ' m  going t o  

do. It i s  hearsay. We don ' t  have these people here t o  t e s t i f y  

t o  t h e i r  representations i n  the a f f i d a v i t ,  but I am going t o  
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i d e n t i f y  t h i s  as an exh ib i t .  

to  the witnesses and ask questions on it, but Mr. Meza i s  f ree 

to b r i ng  up h i s  objection again as i t  re la tes  t o  admitt ing t h i s  

2xhib i t  i n t o  the record. 

I ' m  going t o  a l l o w  you t o  show i t  

It may not be admissible, but I w i l l  a l l o w  you t o  

give t h i s  t o  the witnesses, ask them questions on it, and l e t ' s  

go from there. This w i l l  be Exh ib i t  Number 2, and i t  w i l l  be 

the a f f i d a v i t  o f  Christopher Nutter and Nicholas Aversa. 

MR. PARKS: Correct. Now I d i d n ' t  hear any object ion 

on the one f o r  Christopher Nutter, though. That one i s  

notarized. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: The object ion was relevance as t o  

both and hearsay. 

MR. PARKS: Fine. Okay. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: And w i th  respect t o  the one, t h a t  i t  

wasn't notarized. But go ahead and hand a copy t o  the 

witnesses. These are i d e n t i f i e d  as Exh ib i t  Number 2. 

(Exhib i t  2 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

MR. PARKS: There i s  also one addi t ional  one from Mr. 

Alaganis t h a t  wasn't included, and I want t o  give i t  t o  

Mr. Meza. (Inaudible. ) 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. L e t ' s  make sure you are by 

the microphone when you are speaking. 

MR. PARKS: Okay. There was a t h i r d  one from a 

Mr. Peter Alaganis. I imagine the objections w i l l  be the same, 
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)u t  I w i l l  do the same. Those are ext ra copies. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  L e t ' s  give Mr. Meza an 

ippor tun i ty  t o  look a t  it. 

MR. MEZA: Chairman Jaber, I ra ise  the same 

ibject ions t o  t h i s  a f f i d a v i t  o f  Peter Alaganis, as we l l .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: I s  t h a t  one notarized, Mr. Meza? 

MR. MEZA: No, ma'am. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  For purposes o f  moving 

;his hearing forward, we w i l l  inc lude the a f f i d a v i t  o f  Peter 

Uaganis as Exh ib i t  Number 2. 

But, again, Mr. Parks, understand t h a t  we may not 

idmit these i n t o  the record. So go ahead w i t h  your 

questioning. 

MR. PARKS: I understand. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  Mr. Parks, go ahead and 

isk your questions from the a f f i d a v i t .  

MR. PARKS: Okay. 

3Y MR. PARKS: 

Q F i r s t  o f  a l l ,  have you ever spoken t o  a Christopher 

(u t te r  before? Have you ever spoken t o  a Christopher Nutter? 

A (By Ms. Shields) Yes. 

Q Okay. And d i d  you a1 so - - both w i t h  Mr. Aversa and 

ylr. Nutter - - you said you have spoken t o  Mr. Aversa, you d i d  

3cknowl edge tha t?  

A That i s  correct. 
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Q Okay. And d i d  a t  one po in t  you ask Mr. Aversa t o  

i den t i f y  himself,  you said he had t o  provide I D  l i k e  Social 

Security card, d r i  ver 1 i cense? 

A Yes. 

Q 

A 

Q Okay. Fine. And also Social Secur i ty Number? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. And d i d  t h a t  - -  d i d  those iden t i f i ca t i ons  

And d i d  he not do tha t?  

I bel ieve he provided - -  yes, he d i d  provide tha t .  

Drove t o  be va l id?  

A Yes. 

Q What about Mr. Nutter,  d i d  he not provide you a t  one 

poi n t  Soci a1 Secur i ty card, d r iver  ' s 1 i cense, and Soci a1 

Security card, th ings o f  t h a t  nature f o r  i den t i f i ca t i on?  

A I bel ieve so. 

Q Okay. And d i d  those prove t o  be va l id?  

A 

Q Okay. Fine. A l l  r i g h t .  Now, what about Mr. 

I bel ieve they d id ,  yes. 

Alaganis, have you ever spoken t o  him? 

A I don ' t  reca l l  speaking w i th  Mr. Alaganis. 

Q Okay. I s  i t  t h a t  you don ' t  remember o r  are ywu 

saying tha t  you never did? 

A I don ' t  bel ieve I spoke w i th  Mr. Alaganis. I believe 

someone else i n  our appeals group may have spoken t o  him. 

Q Might have spoken t o  him. Okay. Fine. But anyway, 
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A Not a1 

Q Do you 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. 

A Yes. 

35 

as f a r  as contacts are concerned - -  now, you have read the 

a f f i d a v i t ,  do you see them i n  f ron t  o f  you there? Have you had 

them? 

o f  them. 

want t o  read them? 

Do you disagree w i th  the contents? 

Q I n  what respect? 

A Well, f i r s t  o f  a l l ,  I d i d  not place c a l l s  t o  these 

customers t e l l i n g  them they would be shut o f f ,  t o  any o f  them, 

tha t  we were going t o  - -  t ha t  i s  not my pos i t ion  w i th  

Bel 1 South. 

Q Uh-huh. 

A As f a r  as M r .  Aversa s ta t ing  tha t  I d i d  not t e l l  him 

I would not supply any tenants o f  Anthony Parks w i th  phone 

service, I d i d  not say t h a t  t o  him. 

Q Okay. A l l  r i g h t .  

A He d i d  indeed ren t  from you, accord 

document t h a t  you provided t o  us. 

Q Uh-huh. 

ng t o  the 

A Okay. Christopher Nutter, I disagree w i th  that .  I 

have never spoken t o  M r .  Nutter and t o l d  him I was going t o  

disconnect h i s  service personally. There was a discussion a t  

one time about the corporation on one o f  the numbers, i f  i t  was 
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I v a l i d  corporation tha t  was i n  M r .  Nu t te r ' s  name rather than a 

iersonal service, so I don ' t  agree w i th  t h a t  statement. Let  me 

see. 

Q Okay. 

A And the same w i th  Mr. Alaganis. I have never t o l d  

i i m  I was - -  t ha t  i s  not my posi t ion,  again, I want t o  

-e i  te ra te  a t  Bel 1 South t o  do col  1 ect ion proceedings. 

Q I don ' t  bel ieve t h a t  they ' re  s ta t i ng  tha t  you were 

;here t o  co l l ec t  money from them or  t h a t  you were asking them, 

i t ' s  j u s t  t ha t  the understanding, and I j u s t  want t o  make sure 

ve are c lear on t h i s  here, i s  the understanding from the 

j f f i d a v i t s  tha t  I have here, what they have t o l d  me and what 

they have re la ted  i n  here i s  t h a t  not necessari ly i s  t h a t  when 

the service was in ter rupted they had apparently - -  what t h e i r  

:ontention i s  tha t  they had made payment arrangements w i th  

Mhoever, and I ' m  not saying you. Whoever i n  BellSouth. 

And t h e i r  contention i s  t ha t  the  service was 

always - -  the arrangements was always in ter rupted by you and 

then was t o l d  by you, o r  the notes were l e f t  on the account by 

you tha t  the person who made the arrangements d i d n ' t  have 

authorization t o  do so. And t h a t  you were - -  you were 

overrul ing tha t .  Now, d i d  you ever make a statement t o  me o r  

t o  any one o f  these ind iv idua ls  tha t  you have the a f f i d a v i t s  

from tha t  the arrangements t h a t  were made were not sa t is fac to ry  

and tha t  the person who made i t  wasn't authorized? I ' m  t a l k i n g  
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about the representative of Bel 1South. 
A I t  could be on one of the accounts t h a t  there was a 

discussion. Because as you know, Mr. Parks, we had many 

discussions w i t h  you over the years on the different accounts. 
4nd some of the accounts, some of the discussions Mr. Nutter 
das involved i n ,  Mr. Aversa was involved i n ,  and a t  one time 
our outside counsel was involved. 

So, because of you - - of the Pub1 ic  Service 
Commission appeals t h a t  were filed and other executive appeals 
t h a t  were filed by some of the parties involved i n  the 
confidential information here, there may have been - -  there was 
a time where I intervened because people would call me from our 
collections office saying t h a t  these accounts were possibly not 
being furnished t o  the person who actually resided a t  t h a t  
1 ocati on. 

Q Okay. So i t  is  not untrue, or the representation is  
not untrue t h a t  arrangements were made by a certain 
representative and you a t  some poin t  - - you or some agent of 

yours intervened a t  some poin t  along the line? 
A I d o n ' t  believe payment arrangements were the issues 

t h a t  I intervened i n .  

There may have been, but  I can't recall t h a t  offhand. 

I d o n ' t  recall any specific payment. 

Q Okay. All right. I'm going over - -  
MR. PARKS: Can I ask her anything about this? Is 

t h a t  okay? This is  the - -  
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CHAIRMAN JABER: I s  t h a t  the conf ident ia l  exh ib i t ,  

Mr. Parks? 

MR. PARKS: Yes. I may question her on t h i s ?  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Right. But remember, M r .  Parks, not 

t o  reveal any o f  those numbers or  the addresses. So you need 

t o  be very careful i n  how you ask the question. 

MR. PARKS: Okay. That 's f i ne .  Okay. 

BY MR. PARKS: 

Q I n  your conf ident ia l  - -  I ' m  j u s t  t r y i n g  t o  re f resh 

I ' m  going t o  Page 19, Exh ib i t  Number 25. your memory on one. 

Page 19 o f  25, excuse me. 

A Okay. 

Q It i s  i d e n t i f i e d  here as Number 10. I don ' t  know i f  

i t  i s  the one t h a t  you changed or  what have you, but a t  leas t  

the sheet tha t  I ' m  looking a t  says Number 10. 

A No, t h a t  wasn't changed. 

Q Okay. Fine. Just t o  make sure t h a t  we can a l l  

fo l low t h i s .  ' 

And I guess i t  

r i g h t  over it, 

d i  scussi on on 

h i s  i s  a check here t h a t  says payment stopped. 

appears as though the stop payment stamp i s  

i t  says $190. Do you r e c a l l  us having a 

h i s  check as the reason why i t  was stopped? 

A No, I don' t .  

Q Okay. Let me j u s t  - -  l e t ' s  see i f  we can refresh 

your memory. This i s  when payment was arranged w i th  one o f  

the - - and I issued t h i s  check on behal f  o f  M r .  Nutter, because 
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le asked me t o ,  because he was an employee a t  the t ime. And i f  

IOU r e c a l l  the discussion I had w i t h  you i s  t h a t  you then 

interrupted the account wi thout not ice.  And I said but I j u s t  

issued a check t o  you. And I t o l d  you tha t  i f  you are go ng t o  

in ter rupt  the service, I ' m  going t o  put a stop payment on the 

:heck because arrangements were made w i th  good in tent ions and 

:he check was issued t o  you. Do you reca l l  - - t h i s  was back 

in, I guess, i n  '98? 

A No, s i r ,  I don ' t  r e c a l l  t h a t  a t  a l l .  That d i d n ' t  

iappen. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  And I see 

jays - - going t o  Page 23 o f  25, 

:hanged t h i s  page, i f  I ' m  not m 

A Yes, t ha t  was changed 

18. 

Q Fine, whichever. But 

here tha t  you have here t h a t  

Number 16. I bel ieve you have 

staken. That was one o f  the - -  
t o  coincide w i th  Account Number 

the contents o f  the check, it 

says checks not good per bank, checks not deposited. 

have a question here. Why would you - -  when t h i s  sa id the 

check i s  not good, why would you not deposit them? How do you 

know t h a t  they are not good i f  you don ' t  deposit them? 

Now, I 

A Because we contacted the bank. Our co l lec t ions  group 

contacted the bank and they said a t  t ha t  time those checks were 

not good. 

Q Okay. Do you know t h a t  the banks - -  j u s t  about any 

bank dependent upon what your re la t ionship i s  w i t h  the bank - -  
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I ' m  j u s t  assuming t h a t  t h a t  was argumentatively t r u e  a t  t h a t  

par t i cu la r  po in t ,  t h a t  someone can make a deposit a t ,  say, f o r  

sxample, a f t e r  two o 'c lock  i n  the afternoon and t h a t  account 

nay not post a t  t h a t  po in t ,  but  the funds may be there unless 

you make i t  i n  cash. And t h a t  i f  someone was t o  c a l l  the bank 

that  second i t  may not post even though there i s  another screen 

dhere i t  may show up. Are you aware t h a t  ce r ta in  banks operate 

that  way w i t h  the exception o f  - -  
A 

that  time. 

We only  go by what the bank t e l l s  us when we c a l l  a t  

Q A l l  r i g h t .  Are you also aware t h a t  a bank, even i f  a 

person may have an overdraf t  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  t h e i r  bank t h a t  

the bank may s t i l l  honor the check even i f  the funds a r e n ' t  

there t h a t  second knowing t h a t  the person may - -  knowing l i k e l y  

the person may make good o f  i t  a t  a l a t e r  po in t ,  are you aware 

tha t  banks do do tha t?  

A 

Q 

I do know they have overdraf t  procedures. 

Okay. So how do you know t h a t  the bank wouldn't have 

honored t h i s  down the l i n e ?  

A Because when the conversation - -  from what I 

understand from our co l lec t ions  group, they contact the bank, 

the bank sa id a t  t h i s  t ime the check i s  not good, there i s  not 

any other information t h a t  i s  provided. 

Q Okay. But you r e a l l y  don ' t  know whether o r  not t h i s  

would have been honored even on an overdraf t  basis? 
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A I don ' t  know i f  i t  would have been honored on an 

i ve rd ra f t ,  but  I know i t  wasn't good when we ca l l ed  the bank. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  Okay. L e t ' s  go on t o  Page 24 o f  25. 

lkay. Are you aware t h a t  there was notes placed on there about 

th i s  pa r t i cu la r  check? This i s  a check Number 1156. 

i den t i f y i ng  it. 

" igh t ,  i t  says Item Number 22? 

I ' m  j u s t  

I guess you have i t  down here. I f  I ' m  looking 

A Correct. 

Q Okay. A l l  r i g h t .  It says account closed. Are you 

3ware t h a t  a t  the time there were notes i n  the  account and t h i s  

Mas addressed w i th  BellSouth t h a t  a t  the t ime when t h i s  check 

Mas issued the account was opened and then the  checkbook was 

stolen? I believe i t  was e i the r  l o s t  o r  stolen, and t h a t  they 

dould have - - the bank even n o t i f i e d  you f o l k s  about t h a t  and 

stated t h a t  i t  was being reissued under another number, were 

you aware? 

A I ' m  not aware o f  t h a t ,  s i r .  

Q Okay. Now, l e t  me ask you a question. I f  a customer 

+rites checks on an account t h a t  i s  not good, I ' m  assuming you 

are aware t h a t  the bank would close t h a t  account out in due 

time. Are you aware o f  t ha t?  

A What do you mean an account t h a t  i s  not good? 

Q I n  other words, i f  a person de l ibera te ly  wr i tes a 

check on funds tha t  a r e n ' t  there, you know, and p a r t i c u l a r l y  

does it enough o f  a t ime t o  cause a problem o r  t o  make them 
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look questionable, you know tha t  a bank w i l l  c lose out t h e i r  

iccount. Are you aware o f  tha t?  

A No, s i r ,  I ' m  not a banking person, so I ' m  not aware 

if tha t .  

Q But you do deal w i th  co l lec t ions  o r  you have 

mowledge o f  t ha t  being i n  the f i e l d  tha t  you are i n  f o r  a l l  o f  

:hese years, am I correct? 

A I do not s p e c i f i c a l l y  deal w i th  co l lect ions.  I am 

involved w i th  a l l  appeals t h a t  come i n t o  our o f f i c e  regarding 

3ell South. 

Q Okay. 

A And some o f  them do deal w i th  co l lec t ions ,  so I have 

9 knowledge o f  co l lec t ions .  It i s  not my expert ise. 

you a question, how long have you Q Okay. Can I ask 

ieen w i th  Bel 1 South? 

A 38 years. 

Q And i n  the  p o s i t  

A 11 years. 

on t h a t  you are i n  now? 

Q So between 38 years and the 11 years i n  your 

l os i t i on ,  I am assuming you have a reasonably good knowledge o f  

these because over the  years you have dea l t  w i th  numerous 

3eople on these types o f  s i tua t ions ,  I ' m  assuming? 

A Right. I have a knowledge o f  what our procedures 

are, what our ru les  are and t a r i f f s  are. 

Q Are you aware t h a t  w i th  a l l  o f  these i n s t i t u t i o n s  
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iere,  there has been two t h a t  has been brought up w i th  the 

zopies made, both F i r s t  Union and Washington Mutual, are you 

aware t h a t  I s t i l l  maintain accounts w i t h  them under d i f f e r e n t  

lumbers? 

A No, s i r ,  I wouldn't have any knowledge o f  t ha t .  

Q Okay. A l l  r i g h t .  Now, I have something fu r ther  t o  

ask you, are you aware t h a t  I am a landlord,  among other 

things? 

A From what you have t o l d  us i n  the  past, t ha t  i t  has 

Deen a statement you have made. 

Q Right, okay. And but you have - - have you not 

gone - -  cor rect  me i f  I ' m  wrong, and looked up the tax  records 

3 r  inquired on the  tax records as f a r  as - - because i n  your 

nentions i n  the various statements you have made and these - -  I 
guess i t  i s  the i n i t i a l  p e t i t i o n  t h a t  BellSouth f i l e d ,  which i s  

back on January the 10th o f  2000, you d i d n ' t  mention tha t ,  but  

you ind icate t h a t  I have several accounts, o r  j u s t  the 

impl icat ion i f  I understand co r rec t l y  here, or  t h a t  what you 

are ac tua l l y  a l leg ing  i s  t h a t  I come up w i t h  accounts under 

various d i f f e r e n t  names. And f o r  the  sake o f  not paying the 

b i l l ,  I open up another account under another name, and j u s t  

keep going on, and on, and on over the  years. And I am 

assuming t h a t  the whole basis o f  t h i s  p e t i t i o n  i s  t o  say tha t  I 

am doing t h i s  under fraudulent a c t i v i t y  and t h a t  service should 

not be provided t o  me o r  any propert ies I own i n  the future,  or  
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10 any tenants o r  residents t h a t  I have. 

inderstanding o f  what you are representing i n  these - -  both i n  

;his memorandums, I have one here dated Apr i l  6th,  and the 

i e t i t i o n  tha t  was f i l e d  back on January 10th o f  2000, am I 

zorrect? 

I s  t h a t  my basic 

A You are correct  t ha t  we are ac tua l l y  - -  the issue i s  

l o t  r e a l l y  w i th  BellSouth whether you rent ,  o r  lease, o r  own 

the service, o r  own the locat ion.  The issue i s  tha t  we are 

lav ing t o  place service f o r  a customer who i s  using our service 

and not  paying f o r  t ha t  service t h a t  i s  being provided. 

Q Okay. Let me ask you a question. Would you fee l  - -  
j o  you th ink  tha t  - -  and t h i s  i s  j u s t  a matter o f  frankness 

iere,  t h a t  i f  a customer makes an arrangement, whoever t h a t  

zustomer may be, John Jones, I ' m  j u s t  making up a name 

alanketly, and then he makes h i s  payment and then suddenly h i s  

service i s  in ter rupted because somebody else has a cer ta in  

d i f f e ren t  opinion. Do you th ink  t h a t  t h a t  person might not 

become - -  I ' m  going t o  say t o  be b lun t  about i t , very t i cked 

o f f  or  d i rec t ,  and i f  he issued a payment and he i s  not going 

t o  be service he may stop it? 

A I ' m  sorry, can you repeat tha t .  I d i d n ' t  understand 

what you were saying. 

Q 

name here - - I ' m  not making a name o f  any speci f i c a l  l y  person 

here. 

Okay. I f  a person - -  and I ' m  making up a blanket 
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A I understand. 

Q I ' m  going t o  make a f i c t i t i o u s  name o f  John Jones. 

rha t ' s  j u s t  a name I made up. And you paid - -  t h a t  person 

Ealled up, l e t ' s  say he had a $400 b i l l ,  and he ca l l ed  

3ellSouth up and said, look, I would l i k e  t o  pay $200 t h i s  

nonth and $200 next month hypothet ical ly.  And t h a t  the agent, 

Mhoever he spoke t o ,  said t h a t  i s  okay so long as you make a 

payment now t h a t  i s  good. And then l a t e r  on t h a t  person i s  

to ld,  l e t ' s  say a week l a t e r  t h a t  person's phone i s  in ter rupted 

wen a f t e r  he made h i s  payment, he d i d  not de fau l t ,  he gave a 

check t h a t  was v a l i d  tha t  cleared a t  the time t h a t  he was 

supposed t o  do it. Maybe he d i d n ' t  reach the t ime t o  make the 

second one yet ,  and then suddenly h i s  service i s  in ter rupted 

because, say, Pa t r i c i a  Shields puts a note on there t o  

i n te r rup t  h i s  service f o r  whatever her reasons f o r  i t  or  her 

personal opinions are on the matter. Do you t h i n k  t h a t  t ha t  

customer might not have a reason t o  be perturbed? 

A I don ' t  th ink  t h a t  has anything t o  do w i t h  what the 

discussion i s .  I f  you're t a l k i n g  about a Mr. Jones, a 

f i c t i t i o u s  customer, we would have t o  have more de ta i l s .  

Q Okay. I ' m  going t o  do an example here. Okay. I ' m  

going t o  be spec i f i c  here. A Nicholas Aversa, who I had t o  get 

involved wi th ,  and s p e c i f i c a l l y  a t  the property i s  the 67 

Montego Bay t h a t  he rented back i n  '98 or '99 back a t  t ha t  t i m e  

period. Which you said you d i d  speak t o  him, he d i d  provide 
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h i s  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n ,  you knew o f  him i n  terms o f  what he 

presented appeared t o  be leg i t imate,  a t  leas t  from what you 

could inqui re .  And he made a payment arrangement f o r  whatever 

the b i l l  was t h a t  was owing a t  a ce r ta in  po in t ,  whatever t h a t  

was. And l a t e r  on there was a note placed by you, I ' m  not  

saying t h a t  you ca l led  him and t o l d  him tha t ,  bu t  a note placed 

on the  account by you t o  i n t e r r u p t  h i s  service a f t e r  he made 

the arrangements. And when i n q u i r y  was made as t o  why the 

service was interrupted, i t  said because - - no, correct ion,  l e t  

me back up. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Parks, you j u s t  need t o  ask the  

question. You c a n ' t  t e s t i f y .  You need t o  ask her the 

question, so - -  
MR. PARKS: Well, I was re lay ing her the s i t ua t i on  so 

she can give a response t o  it. She wanted t o  know speci f ics,  

so I was g i v ing  her a spec i f i c  person, a spec i f i c  s i tua t ion .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: So as i t  re la tes  t o  Mr. Aversa, what 

was your question? 

MR. PARKS: 

BY MR. PARKS: 

Q The questi 

Okay. 

n i s  h made n r gemei t I cl then even 

though he f u l f i l l e d  the i n i t i a l  por t ion  o f  tha t ,  the i n i t i a l  

beginning o f  t h a t  arrangement, you placed a note on the account 

t o  i n t e r r u p t  anyway. And when you gave the reason, i t  was why 

the arrangement was made before, the reason was, we l l ,  the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

a 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

ia  
19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

47 

3gent who made i t  wasn't authorized t o  make it. Did you 

3ver - -  do you remember t h a t  s i t ua t i on  s p e c i f i c a l l y  as i t  

nelates t o  Mr. Aversa? And I ' m  r e f e r r i n g  t o  a phone number 

561 - 361 - 0023. 

A Okay. That may have been when we found a 

?elat ionship w i th  the checking account and you and Mr. Aversa. 

9nd the stop payment on the account, the stop payment. O r  the 

account closed rather,  excuse me. 

Q Okay. I bel ieve t h i s  occurred afterwards. The stop 

Mas issued a f t e r  the - -  t h a t  i s  the reason why the stop was 

issued because you reneged on the - - o r  you issued an order t o  

renege on the agreement. Do you not r e c a l l  the discussion we 

had on t h a t  spec i f i ca l l y?  

A I ' m  not understanding. What you ' re  asking i s  not 

f 1 owi ng . 
Q Okay. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Let me give i t  a t r y .  Ms. Shields, 

l e t ' s  me give i t  a t ry.  Do your records ind ica te  t h a t  Mr. 

Aversa entered i n t o  a b i  1 1 i ng arrangement? 

WITNESS SHIELDS: Yes. Wai t .  A b i l l i n g  payment 

arrangement? I don' t  r e c a l l  tha t .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. So do your records ind icate 

whether you ever overrode a b i  11 i ng  payment arrangement? 

WITNESS SHIELDS: No. I don' t  r e c a l l  t ha t  I was 

i nvol ved w i th  a b i  11 i n g  payment arrangement. 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Let me ask a question. The 

:heck t h a t  i s  the subject o f  Page 24 o f  25, was t h a t  check 

ittempted t o  be deposited by BellSouth? 

WITNESS SHIELDS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And i t  d i d  not c lear  the bank, 

is  t h a t  correct? 

WITNESS SHIELDS: Right. It showed account closed, 

lo not redeposit. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Do you know i f  t h i s  pa r t i cu la r  

:heck was some type o f  a payment arrangement? 

WITNESS SHIELDS: 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: A deposit t o  establ i s h  service? 

WITNESS SHIELDS: To establ ish the service. So the 

jeposit was taken, the service was established. Subsequently 

:he check was returned. 

I bel ieve i t  was a deposit. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So i s  i t  normal p o l i c y  t h a t  

vhen a deposit check does not c lear  t h a t  service i s  not 

Zont nued? 

WITNESS SHIELDS: We e i the r  would i n t e r r u p t  the 

;erv ce, put t o l l  blocks, yes, s i r ,  t h a t  i s  correct .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. And i n  t h i s  pa r t i cu la r  

Zase, you j u s t  in ter rupted the service, i s  t h a t  correct? 

WITNESS SHIELDS: I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  re f resh my memory, 

jus t  a second. I bel ieve t h a t  we did.  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And t h a t  i s consi stent w i th  
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lour t a r i f f  and your procedures, you have t h a t  opt ion o f  simply 

just d i  sconnect ng service? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, t h a t  i s  correct .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Did i t  have anything t o  do w i th  

:he f a c t  t h a t  apparently t h i s  check was drawn on a j o i n t  

xcount? 

THE WITNESS: Well, i t was a question, yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: But t he  main reason was t h a t  

the check d i d  not c lear? 

THE WITNESS: The main reason was the check d i d n ' t  

:lear, which we would do f o r  any other customer. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Go ahead, M r .  Parks. 

3Y MR. PARKS: 

Q Are you contending t h a t  i n  your - -  j u s t  a second, l e t  

ne look a t  the paperwork here. On the  information i n  t h i s ,  I 

guess, propr ie tary  e x h i b i t  l i s t ,  you s t a r t  out w i th  - -  I guess 

I c a n ' t  reveal names, but say Item 1, it gives names o f  a 

pa r t i cu la r  person and i t  goes on down the l i n e .  Are you 

stat ing t h a t  BellSouth i s  necessari ly saying t h a t  I am 

responsible f o r  a l l  o f  these b i l l s ,  t h a t  these are j u s t  

f i c t i t i o u s  names o r  th ings t h a t  I invented simply t o  establ ish 

service w i t h  BellSouth? 

A (By Ms. Shields) BellSouth i s  saying tha t  we found 

association w i th  you w i th  these accounts and these addresses. 

Q I don ' t  t h ink  anyone - -  okay, I ' m  not supposed t o  be 
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ies t i f y ing .  

rope r t i es ,  the question t h a t  I am s ta t i ng  here i s  when a 

Ierson owns a mu1 t i p l e  - - o r  landlords own mu1 t i p l e  propert ies, 

iany d i f f e r e n t  - - correct  me i f  I ' m  wrong - - over the years, 

iany d i f f e r e n t  people w i l l  ren t  those propert ies,  r i g h t ?  I 

lean, t h a t  i s  the whole idea o f  renta ls? 

I don ' t  th ink  anyone i s  questioning t h a t  I own the 

A Correct. 

Q Okay. I s  there something t h a t  i s  improper about 

;hat? Do you f i n d  something improper about tha t?  

A No. But as t o  your question about a l l  o f  these 

iccounts, Mr. Parks, some o f  these accounts were spec i f i c  

:orPorations f o r  which we had no v a l i d  reg i s t ra t i on ,  a l o t  o f  

:hem, not j u s t  renta l  property. 

Q No v a l i d  reg is t ra t ion .  What do you mean by tha t?  

A Corporate reg is t ra t ion .  We were not able t o  v e r i f y  

:x is t ing - - 

Q Okay. But i s n ' t  t h a t  done i n  the beginning when the 

service i s  established as opposed t o  you ge t t i ng  involved l a t e r  

jown the l i n e ?  

A Not always. 

Q Okay. So you're saying t h a t  l a t e r  on you cou ldn ' t  

Je r i f y  something, so instead o f  i nqu i r i ng  about i t , i s  i t  not 

true tha t  you j u s t  b l a t a n t l y  cut  the service o f f ?  

A 

Q Okay. You never b l a t a n t l y  cut  the service o f f  

No, we don ' t  j u s t  b l a t a n t l y  cut  service o f f .  
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vithout no t ice  and said t h a t  you had a r i g h t  t o  do t h a t  i f  you 

suspected t h a t  i t  i s  fraudulent? 

A We may suspect a problem i n  not having a responsible 

i i l l i n g  pa r t y  on the account, and we can cut the  service i n  

that instance f o r  not having responsi b i  1 i t y  on the account. 

Q Okay. Are you aware o f  what a d/b/a i s ?  

A Doing business as. 

Q Okay. And i f  a person i s  doing business as a d/b/a, 

then i t  wouldn't  be a corporate e n t i t y ,  i t  would not be 

registered w i t h  the Secretary o f  State a t  t h a t  po int .  You are 

aware o f  t ha t ,  a ren ' t  you? 

A That i s  correct .  

Q Okay. So then i f  t h a t  was a s i t u a t i o n  t h a t  came up 

i n  ce r ta in  o f  these which you have here, would t h a t  be a reason 

to  i n t e r r u p t  service? 

A I don ' t  know. You can ' t  take tha t  question, t ha t  i s  

w t  o f  context. In te r rup t  service f o r  what? 

Q Well, what I ' m  saying i s  you said t h a t  you f e l t  i n  

certain instances concerned because they weren't a1 1 registered 

d i th  the Secretary o f  State. That 's what you stated, am I 

correct? 

A Well, they weren't a l l  V a l  i d .  Some had expired, some 

were reg i  stered. 

Q But i f  something expired, does tha t  make i t  

i l l e g i t i m a t e  or  fraudulent? 
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Q How so? 

A It i s  not a v a l i d  working 

Flor ida.  There i s  no responsible b 

company t o  b i l l  t o .  

Q Okay. Are you aware tha t  

52 

corporation i n  the State o f  

l l i n g  person f o r  any 

a l l  the - - a r e n ' t  you aware 

that  i f  you were t o  check w i t h  probably 30 percent o f  the 

corporations i n  F lor ida t h a t  do business w i th  the Secretary o f  

State would you not - -  do you expect t ha t  you would f i n d  tha t  

several o f  them might not have f i l e d  t h e i r  renewal? 

MR. MEZA: Objection, c a l l s  f o r  speculation. 

Mr. Parks i s  asking Ms. Shields t o  determine what other 

companies do when they f i l e  w i t h  the Secretary o f  State. 

MR. PARKS: Well, I would j u s t  l i k e  t o  respond t o  

tha t  objection. F i r s t  o f  a l l ,  I th ink  i t  i s  very relevant 

because what she i s  saying i s ,  and what i s  happening here - -  
what I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  s i t ua te  here i s  they are t r y i n g  t o  focus on 

one ind iv idua l ,  and what I ' m  s ta t i ng  here i s  I ' m  not saying 

tha t  a corporation - - someone may not have f i l e d  t h e i r  renewal 

on September 17th when i t  ought t o  have been done. But what 

I ' m  s ta t i ng  i s  t ha t  you don ' t  abruptly j u s t  i n te r rup t  t h e i r  

service over tha t  without g i v ing  them proper not ice and time t o  

do so. She i s  saying t h a t  they don ' t  have a proper - -  and I ' m  

saying tha t  i f  you were t o  po in t  t ha t  f inger  t o  h a l f  the 

corporations tha t  they supply, they may very well  f i n d  the same 
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th ing w i t h  others. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Parks, the object ion i s  

speculation. That the way you phrased the  question would 

resul t i n  her specul a t i  ng the answer. 

MR. PARKS: I w i l l  rephrase it. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Yes. 

BY MR. PARKS: 

Q I f  BellSouth was t o  inqu i re  o f  a l l  the  corporations 

tha t  they do business w i th ,  o r  t h a t  they supply phone service 

to ,  and check w i t h  the Secretary o f  State i n  every s ing le one 

o f  them, don ' t  you t h i n k  t h a t  you would come up w i th  a 

substantial amount t h a t  might not have f i l e d  t h e i r  renewals 

when they ought t o  have? 

A 

Q 

I don ' t  have knowledge o f  tha t .  

Do you not have knowledge because you r e a l l y  never 

focused on anybody e lse except me? 

A No, s i r ,  t h a t  i s  not correct. I d o n ' t  have knowledge 

because tha t  i s  a government type check the records which I 

would not know what the  records are w i th  the  State o f  Flor ida.  

I j u s t  would l i k e  t o  j u s t  go back t o  one th ing  here. 

I don ' t  want t o  belabor it, but  back on t h i s  check here w i t h  

Washington Mutual, t h i s  Item Number 22, i t  says account closed, 

do not redeposit. Did you inqu i re  - - when you see t h a t  stamp 

there, d i d  you inqu i re  - - I see no comment mentioned here, and 

I see comments on the others. Did you inqu i re  w i t h  Washington 

Q 
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lutual t h a t  they reissued a new account number on t h i s ?  

A We don ' t  do tha t ,  s i r .  We take the check, the 

:o l lect ions group would take the  check, c a l l  the bank. Or i f  

*eceived i t  from the bank t h i s  time, we would j u s t  not 

.edeposit i t  per the ins t ruc t ions  there. 

*espons ib i l i t y  t o  f i n d  out i f  the  customer has the correct  

jccount. 

It i s  not our 

Q But are you not aware - - Bel lSouth, I am assuming, 

j e t s  thousands o f  checks. And i n  the  course o f  - - i t  may not 

iappen t o  you personally, i f  you happen t o  be i n  the 

supermarket and someone s to le  your wa l l e t ,  and you had issued 

ten checks the day before, and suddenly you had t o  c a l l  i n  t h a t  

ny checkbook i s  stolen, I am assuming you must have knowledge 

o f  t h i s  t h a t  the bank i s  going t o  put  a stop payment on 

anything t h a t  i s  outstanding and reissue the  numbers, you have 

knowledge o f  t ha t ,  don ' t  you? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, do you th ink  t h a t  i t  - -  i s n ' t  i t  feasible t o  say 

t h a t  someone should get not ice o f  t h i s  so t h a t  they can have a 

chance t o  reissue it, p a r t i c u l a r l y  and possibly even w i th  a 

l e t t e r  from the bank s ta t i ng  the book was stolen, i t  had t o  be 

stopped and issued as opposed t o  j u s t  i n te r rup t i ng  the service? 

A This was f o r  a new service. 

Q I get t i ng  t o  t h a t  i n  a second. This check i s  dated 

7-20-99. That 's t rue,  i t  was issued f o r  new service, but the  
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o i n t  I ' m  ge t t i ng  a t  here i s  a f t e r  t h i s  check was issued, 

asn ' t  there even another payment even a f t e r  t h i s  was made on 
h i s  account? 

A I don ' t  have t h a t  informat ion on here. It i s  

lossible, but  I don ' t  have it. 

Q Okay. That 's f i ne .  So would i t  not be f a i r  t o  say 

hat i f  other payments were made on t h i s  account t h a t  cleared 

Ibviously, because there i s  nothing e lse  showing here as f a r  as 

lccounts go, t h a t  i t  may very wel l  be t h a t  there was the 

roblem tha t  I was j u s t  addressing, and t h a t  i f  BellSouth had 

:ontacted e i the r  Mr. Aversa or  myself t o  address it, t h a t  you 

lad t h i s  pa r t i cu la r  one from being closed, t h a t  i t  would have 

leen no problem t o  reissue it, even g ive you cash a t  t h a t  

)o in t ,  i f  necessary, as opposed t o  j u s t  i n te r rup t i ng  the 

iccount without notice? 

S i r ,  I th ink  we ta lked about t h a t  w i th  the deposit. 

Je have t h a t  r i g h t  according t o  our ru les  and t a r i f f s  on new 

iervice. We don ' t  have any secur i ty  on t h a t  account. When we 

;ook the account we would have f e l t  t h a t  was the reason f o r  the 

;ecuri t y  deposit . 

A 

Q Okay. You understand there i s  a b i g  d i f ference 

ietween an account bei  ng c l  osed and i nsuf f i c i  ent funds? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Are you aware t h a t  - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: I need t o  i n t e r p r e t  f o r  a 
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loment. 

;here i s  a d i f ference between an account being closed and 

insu f f i c i en t  funds. I guess my question t o  you, though, i s  I 

issume Bel 1 South ' s concern i s g e t t i  ng payment f o r  the service 

;hey rendered. So what di f ference does i t  make i f  an 

iccount - -  i f  you get a check returned t h a t  says i n s u f f i c i e n t  

Funds, or  i f  you get a checked returned t h a t  says account 

:lased, the f a c t  i s  you d i d n ' t  get made. Do you make some 

l i s t i n c t i o n  i n  your in te rna l  accounting? 

I n  the l a s t  question you indicated t h a t  you understand 

WITNESS SHIELDS: No, normally not.  Especial ly w i th  

3 deposit. Because as I said, t ha t  account i s  not  secured, he 

zould pay h i s  b i l l  or he could not pay h i s  b i l l ,  we have no way 

to know what i s  going t o  happen i n  the future.  And before we 

lad been able t o  secure the account, the b i l l  may have been 

very large. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: 

I n  answer i s  t o  Mr. Park 's question, you have stated 

I would j u s t  l i k e  t o  fu r ther  

c lar i fy.  

that  you d i d  recognize the di f ference between accounts closed 

o r  i n s u f f i c i e n t  funds. Are there times t h a t  BellSouth w i l l  

t r e a t  those s i tuat ions d i f f e r e n t l y ?  

WITNESS SHIELDS: Let me j u s t  c l a r i f y ,  I am not as I 

said a co l lect ions person. As f a r  as my knowledge I don ' t  

bel ieve so, but  I th ink  not, I mean, I don ' t  know what the 

posi t ions are. I f  you have a returned check, our systems I 
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:now automat ical ly n o t i f y  our business o f f i c e  tha t  there i s  a 

:heck returned on tha t  account. It doesn't t e l l  them what i t  

ias immediately. And I bel ieve t h a t  we go ahead wi th  our 

:ol 1 e c t i  on procedures. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Thank you. 

MR. PARKS: I ' m  going t o  r e l a t e  - -  these are not i n  

;he conf ident ia l  c ' a s s i f i c a t i o n s .  Am I allowed t o  bring up any 

lames t h a t  are not  i n  the conf ident ia l  c lass i f i ca t i on?  

CHAIRMAN JABER: What i s  the document you are looking 

it, M r .  Parks? 

MR. PARKS: I ' m  j u s t  bas i ca l l y  - -  what I ' m  t ry ing t o  

?stab1 i s h  here i s  t ha t  - - 
CHAIRMAN JABER: No, what i s  the document t h a t  you 

w e  looking a t ?  

MR. PARKS: Oh, I ' m  j u s t  r e f e r r i n g  t o  leases t h a t  I 

have had. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: 

MR. PARKS: Yes, 

CHAIRMAN JABER: 

treatment f o r  them? 

MR. PARKS: NO, 

CHAIRMAN JABER: 

Leases? 
1 eases w i t h  d i  f f e ren t  - - 

You are not assert ing conf ident ia l  

' m  not. 

But whatever document you are 

looking a t  you need t o  make sure t h a t  you have got copies f o r  

the witness t o  review, as we l l .  

MR. PARKS: Sure. Right now I ' m  j u s t  mentioning 
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lames so t h a t  she - -  t o  see i f  they r e c a l l  her memory, i f  she 

\ecol l  ects the names. 

IY MR. PARKS: 

Q I ' m  going t o  make mention o f  a few names here. Gary 

:rench, does t h a t  name r i n g  a b e l l  t o  you? 

A No. 

Q 
A No. 

Q 

A No. 

Q 

A No. 

Q 

Does the name Freida Fishman (phonetic)? 

Does the name Joanne Sharr (phonetic)? 

Does the name Andrew Ke l l e r  (phonetic)? 

Okay. Could i t  be the reason why these names are not 

?inging a b e l l  i s  because they were people t h a t  rented 

r o p e r t i e s  from me, but  you bas i ca l l y  never had any problems 

v i th  them because they paid t h e i r  b i l l s  and t h a t  i s  probably 

vhy you don ' t  know who they are? 

A I have never heard those names, t h a t ' s  a l l  I can t e l l  

you. 

MR. PARKS: That 's  a l l  I have f o r  her a t  t h i s  time. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you, Mr. Parks. S t a f f .  

MS. CHRISTENSEN: No questions a t  t h i s  time, 

:ommi ssioner. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you, Ms. Christensen. 

Redirect . 
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MR. MEZA: Yes, ma'am. 

RED1 RECT EXAM1 NATION 

3Y MR. MEZA: 

Q Ms. Shields, do you know how many accounts BellSouth 

ias determined are re la ted  t o  Mr. Parks? 

A (By Ms. Shields) Probably 25. 

Q Do you know i f  any o f  those 25 accounts have - -  do 

my o f  them have a zero balance? 

A No. 

Q Do you know how much money those accounts - -  o r  how 

nuch money i s  owed t o  BellSouth i n  those 25 accounts? 

A $22,000 plus. 

Q Ms. Sims, i s  the purpose o f  t h i s  waiver request t o  

iarass Mr. Parks or  h i s  tenants? 

A (By Ms. Sims) No, not i n  the least .  The whole 

purpose i s  t o  - - our ru les  require us t o  provide service t o  

indiv iduals who reside a t  propert ies where a person who has 

been there before, who possibly has bad c red i t ,  i f  the new 

person moves in ,  we give service t o  the new person i f  they 

don' t  have a bad c r e d i t  r a t e  r a t i n g  or  they don ' t  owe us money. 

And i f  there are s i tua t ions  where we continue t o  have problems 

a t  propert ies, or w i t h  ce r ta in  names re la ted  t o  another 

ind iv idual ,  then we are a t  a loss w i th  the current r u l e  as f a r  

as being able t o  monitor the s i tua t ion  and not provide service 

and run up b i l l s .  So bas i ca l l y  t ha t  i s  the reason f o r  the 
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waiver request. 

Q Has BellSouth ever previously requested t h i s  type o f  

waiver? 

A No. This i s  a unique s i t ua t i on  and we take i t  very, 

very ser iously.  We have made every e f f o r t ,  and I bel ieve you 

can see from the f i l e  we have made every e f f o r t  t o  provide 

service where requested, and we have investigated, and t h i s  i s  

the l a s t  resor t .  We have never done t h i s  before. 

Q Ms. Sims,  Mr. Parks made several statements regarding 

Bel 1South's po l i c ies  when a witness - - I mean, when a tenant 

t r i e s  t o  obtain service from BellSouth. Does BellSouth 

normally have a problem when a tenant pays a t ime ly  b i l l ?  

A No. No, we don ' t .  

Q Ms. Shields, Mr. Parks referenced a series o f  

corporations. Do you remember him t a l k i n g  about tha t?  

A (By Ms. Shields) Yes. 

Q Do you know, f o r  instance, i f  Mr. Parks was 

associated w i th  North S t a r  Industr ies? 

A Yes. 

Q 

A Yes. 

Q 

A I ' m  sorry, j u s t  a minute. 

Do you know i f  he was the registered agent? 

Do you know what happened on tha t  account? 

MR. PARKS: Excuse me. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Do you have an objection, M r .  Parks? 
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MR. PARKS: 

se the men's room? 

I s  i t  possible t o  take a recess so I can 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Absolutely. We w i l l  come back a t  

1:30. 

MR. PARKS: Okay. Thank you. 

(Recess. 1 
CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Meza, you were f i n i s h i n g  

edi rec t .  

MR. MEZA: Thank you. 

IY MR. MEZA: 

Q Ms. Shields, I was asking you about, I bel ieve i t  was 

lorth S t a r  Indust r ies,  Inc.  Do you remember tha t?  

A (By Ms. Shields) Yes. 

Q And I t h i n k  you t o l d  me t h a t  Mr. Parks was a 

begi stered agent o f  t h a t  company? 

A That i s  correct .  

Q Do you know i f  a t  the t ime service was requested f o r  

;his company whether North S t a r  was a v a l i d  F lor ida 

:orPoration? 

A No, i t  wasn't. 

Q Do you know how much charges or  how much charges were 

incurred on t h a t  account? 

A $2,385.91. 

Q 
A No. 

Has any o f  t ha t  amount been paid t o  BellSouth? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

62 

Q 

A Okay. 

Q 

A That i s  a check. Stop payment, do not deposit, 

I f  you could t u r n  on your e x h i b i t  t o  Page 18 o f  25? 

Can you t e l l  me what t h a t  i s ,  please? 

t r i t t e n  on the North S t a r  Indust r ies account, and i t  was on an 

account by M r .  Parks, Anthony E. Parks. 

Q Okay. 

A For $1,000. 

Q Are you f a m i l i a r  w i th  another company ca l led  North 

S t a r  Landing , or  excuse me, Northwest Landi ng Devel opment? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you know i f  Mr. Parks i s  re la ted  i n  any way t o  

tha t  company? 

A Yes, I believe he was a reg is tered agent. 

Q Okay. Do you know i f  a t  the  time t h a t  company sought 

t o  obtain service from BellSouth i f  i t  was a v a l i d  F lor ida 

corporat i  on? 

A I don ' t  bel ieve i t  was. 

Q Do you know i f  Mr. Parks ever attempted t o  i n i t i a t e  

service by w r i t i n g  a deposit check f o r  it? 

A I bel ieve so. I have t o  - -  
Q And I w i l l  r e fe r  you t o  number - - on Page 24 o f  25 o f  

your exh ib i t .  

A Okay. That was Northwest Landing, i s  t h a t  what you 

were saying? 
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Q Yes, ma'am. 

A Okay. Yes, i t  was a $200 check. The account was 

:1osed by - - i t  was on an account by Aversa and Mr. Parks. 

Q What about Nova Realty Investments, have you heard 

ibout t h a t  company? 

A Yes. 

Q 
lr. Parks? 

A 

Q 

And do you know how i t  i s  re la ted  i f  a t  a l l  t o  

I bel ieve he was a registered agent on tha t ,  also. 

Again the  same question, was the  company a v a l i d  

: lor ida corporation a t  the t ime he sought service? 

A I don ' t  bel ieve so. 

Q Mr. Parks had a ser ies o f  questions regarding h i s  

;enants, two o f  which were Christopher Nutter and Nick Aversa. 

If Mr. Parks had not w r i t t e n  checks on or  submitted checks on 

;heir behal f ,  would we have been able t o  i d e n t i f y  those 

iccounts as being re la ted  t o  Mr. Parks? 

A I don ' t  bel ieve so. 

Q I f  h i s  tenant does pay o r  wr i tes an ind iv idua l  check 

from h i s  own account, we don ' t  necessari ly care i f  Mr. Parks 

iwns the property, do we? 

A No. 

Q And i f  Mr. Aversa o r  M r .  Nutter, i f  

some c r e d i t  problems, i s  t h a t  a r e s u l t  o f  Bel 

A No, s i r .  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

they are having 

South's f a u l t ?  



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

64 

Q The account associated w i th  M r .  Nutter and M r .  

\versa, do they s t i  11 have outstanding balances? 

A Yes, they do. 

Q And when BellSouth receives or  i s  unable t o  deposit 

funds, does i t  inqu i re  w i th  the bank as t o  when those funds may 

)e avai 1 ab1 e? 

A No. 

Q And, i n  fac t ,  has anyone associated w i th  Mr. Parks 

3 f te r  a check has been denied attempted t o  make another payment 

3n t h a t  account? 

A I don ' t  bel ieve so. 

Q Ms. Sims, can Mr. Parks or  h i s  tenants obtain service 

from other car r ie rs?  

A (By Ms. Sims) Yes. Especial ly i n  the southeast area 

there are several a1 ternate loca l  exchange companies providing 

service. And, o f  course, there are wireless car r ie rs ,  also. 

Q I s  e i ther  M r .  Parks or  any o f  h i s  tenants t h a t  we are 

aware o f  and were made subject o f  t h i s  hearing today cur ren t ly  

receiv ing service from BellSouth? 

A Not t h a t  I am aware o f .  

MR. MEZA: I have no fur ther  questions. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you, Mr. Meza. We have 

b i t s  1 and 2. 

MR. MEZA: I would l i k e  t o  move those i n t o  the 

record, p l  ease. 

Exh 
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CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. Exh ib i t  1 shal l  be admitted 

i n t o  the record without objection. Exh ib i t  2 shal l  be admitted 

i n t o  the record without objection. 

MR. PARKS: Which exh ib i ts  are we r e f e r r i n g  to?  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Exh ib i t  1 i s  the conf ident ia l  

exh ib i t .  Exhib i t  2, those are the a f f i d a v i t s  t h a t  you showed 

the witnesses. 

MR. PARKS: Right. 

(Exhibi ts 1 and 2 admitted i n t o  the record.) 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A1 1 r i g h t .  S t a f f ,  t h a t  concludes 

I want t o  t a l k  t o  you the testimony por t ion o f  the hearing. 

about what i s  next, though. 

Ms. Sims, Ms. Shields, thank you very much f o r  your 

t e s t  i mony . 
MR. PARKS: Am I allowed t o  t e s t i f y ?  

CHAIRMAN JABER: No, s i r .  Remember, you d i d n ' t  

p r e f i l e  testimony. And as I made clear t o  you i n  the 

prehearing conference and again t h i s  morning, you are allowed 

t o  cross-examine witnesses. These were the witnesses tha t  we 

had. But you missed the p r e f i l e d  testimony f i l i n g  date, so you 

d i d  not p r e f i l e  testimony. Now, I want t o  make sure, though, 

we understand what happens next. There are post - hearing 

f i l i n g s  pursuant t o  the order on procedure i n  t h i s  case. 

And, s t a f f ,  g ive me the time frames f o r  when those 

are due. And, Mr. Meza and M r .  Parks, I want t o  make sure t h a t  
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you a l l  understand what those time l i n e s  are, and I want t o  

nake sure t h a t  you understand how many pages, and what i s  

2xpected o f  you and what happens i f  you do not f i l e .  

MR. MEZA: May I ra ise  a motion t o  see i f  the 

:ommission would be i nc l i ned  t o  issue a r u l i n g  from the bench 

to  avoid post-hearing b r i e f s ?  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners, there has been a 

notion by BellSouth f o r  a bench decision. 

MR. PARKS: I would object. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: And an object ion by Mr. Parks. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Given t h a t  there i s  an 

objection, and t h a t  i t  would be benef ic ia l  t o  have a 

recommendation from s t a f f ,  I t h i n k  t h a t  we should not have a 

bench deci s i  on. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : I agree w i th  Commissioner 

Deason, and agree t h a t  a bench decision - - I would prefer  

having the b r i e f s  and the s t a f f  recommendation. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. So based upon a motion by 

Commission Deason and a second by Commission Palecki , your 

motion f o r  a bench decision i s  denied. 

Ms. Christensen, I am looking a t  the prehearing 

order, which i s  Order Number 010722, and under the post-hearing 

procedure section, Page 4, I would a lso note t h a t  the same 

language i s  i n  the orders on procedure issued i n  t h i s  case, but 

bas ica l l y  the post-hearing procedure i s  t h a t  pa r t i es  are 
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m t i t l e d  t o  f i l e  40 pages o f  a post-hear ing b r i e f .  Fa i lu re  t o  

' i l e  a post-hear ing statement resu l t s  i n  a waiver o f  a l l  issues 

Ind a possible dismissal o f  the procedure. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: L e t ' s  make sure, they are not 

-equired t o  f i l e  40 pages. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: That ' s r i g h t  . 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: They cannot exceed 40 pages. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: That 's r i g h t .  

MR. PARKS: Okay. I th ink  I understand tha t .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: And i f  you don ' t  have changes t o  

your posi t ions,  you may j u s t  f i l e  a document t h a t  restates your 

x r r e n t  posi t ions.  

MR. PARKS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: And what are the dates f o r  f i l i n g  

3ost-hearing b r i e f s ?  

MS. CHRISTENSEN: Pursuant t o  the f i f t h  order 

nodifying the order establ ishing procedure, t h a t  i s  

3SC-011771-PCO-TL, the b r i e f s  are due t o  be f i l e d  on March 4th, 

2002. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  And t e n t a t i v e l y  you have 

scheduled a f i l i n g  o f  your s t a f f  recommendation on when? 

MS. CHRISTENSEN: I ' m  not sure on tha t ,  Commissioner, 

i f  you could give me a moment. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Yes, I don ' t  have the CASR i n  f ron t  

o f  me. But what I would l i k e  t o  do, Ms. Christensen, i s  make 
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sure t h a t  the par t ies  are wel l  aware o f  when you w i l l  f i l e  the 

s t a f f  recommendation and when i t  w i l l  come t o  the  agenda 

2onference. 

MS. CHRISTENSEN: Cer ta in ly .  And i f  M r .  Parks can 

v a i t ,  we w i l l  get t ha t  information t o  him today. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Great. And t o  BellSouth. 

MS. CHRISTENSEN: As we1 1 . 
CHAIRMAN JABER: A1 1 r i g h t .  Anything fu r ther ,  

Vlr. Parks? 

MR. PARKS: Yes. I j u s t  want t o  j u s t  c l a r i f y  

something here. You stated t h a t  I ' m  not  allowed t o  t e s t i f y  on 

ny behalf because I d i d n ' t  f i l e  a p r e t r i a l  d ispos i t ion  o r  I 

3idn' t  - -  
CHAIRMAN JABER: You d idn ' t  p r e f i l e  testimony. 

k c o r d i n g  t o  Commission procedures, i t ' s  i n  the ru les ,  i t ' s  i n  

the order on procedure t h a t  was issued, and we discussed i t  i n  

the prehearing conference. Anyone wishing t o  t e s t i f y ,  any 

party t h a t  wishes t o  t e s t i f y  has t o  p r e f i l e  testimony so t h a t  

there are no surprises and there i s  adequate opportuni ty f o r  

cross-examination. 

I f  I analogize i t  t o  the benef i t  you had w i t h  

BellSouth's testimony, p r e f i l e d  testimony, you were able t o  

cross-examine from tha t .  That i s  what your p r e f i l e d  testimony 

would have given BellSouth an opportunity t o  do. Fa i lu re  t o  

p r e f i l e  testimony takes away your opportunity t o  t e s t i f y .  
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MR. PARKS: But t h i s  g rea t ly  prejudices my case and 

ny pos i t i on  because I ' m  not able t o  defend myself. I mean, 

yes, I asked her cer ta in  questions and she responded, but  I 

j i d n ' t  understand t h a t  t h a t  i s  what - -  I thought i t  was 

just  f i l i n g  a - -  i n  fac t ,  I thought I f i l e  something i n  

.esponse t o  t h i s .  Did I not f i l e  something? I s  there not 

Something i n  the f i l e  - -  
CHAIRMAN JABER: You're asking me. I f  you p r e f i l e d  

testimony you would know, Mr. Parks. There i s  nothing fu r ther  

to come before us. This hearing i s  concluded. You are welcome 

to ra ise  anything you would l i k e  i n  your post-hear ing f i l i n g .  

MR. PARKS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thi s hearing i s concl uded. 

(The hearing concluded a t  11:37 a.m.) 
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AFFADAVIT OF PETER ALAGANIS 

RE: Bell South Petition No. 000028 TL 

My Name is Peter .Alazanis md 1 have knowledge in this case, 

During March of 1999 I rented from Anthony Parks a condo in one of the buildings 
He own at 4750 S. Ocean Blvd. Highland Beach, FL. 

I had phone service for a short time and 1 received a call from Pat Shields that 
She was going to interrupt my service because I rent from Anthony Parks. 
And that Bell South will not supply service to any properties that Mr. Parks 
Owns or operates. 

I was not delinquent on my bill and I feel that Bell South acted in Bad faith. 

I would appear in person, however based upon short notice I am not able too, 
However I can be reached by phone if necessary. 

Also approximately six months ago I went to purchase a car on credit, and 
I on my credit report was a back bill to do with this account that I have never 
Received or else it would have been paid. and it was held against my personal 
Credit. 

I believe that Bell South is acting in Bad Faith! 

I hereby state that all statements made are m e  and correct and are made under 
Penalty of perjury. 

Peter Alaganis 

2/3/02 

Wimess n 



AFFADAVIT OF CHRISTOPHER NUTTER 

Bell South Petition No. 000028TL 

My name is Christopher Nutter and 1 have knowledge in this case. 

I have rented one of Mr. Parks Units and had phone service in my name of which 
I only occupied the unit with My former Fiancte’ and myself. 

I received a call from Pat Shields stating that she was going to interrupt service 
Since I rent from Anthony Parks. 

Bell South has also placed this on my personal credit tile. 

I have never received the last bills and as a result it was never paid. It is appears 
To me that Bell South is acting in bad faith. 

SWORN TOO BEFORE ME ON THIS FIFTH DAY OF JANUARY 2002 

. .  

TCHrishopher Nutter 

-- 
/-I 



Attidavit of Nichola Avena 

Bell South Petition No. 000028 TL 

My name is Nicholas A v m  

Rc: 561-361-0023 

During 1998 and 1999 I rented one ofMr. Parks Unit at 6755 Montego Bay, Boca Raton. 

On Numerous occasions I would make payment arrangements on my bills and then I 
Would always get calls from Pat Shields voiding the arrangements and cutting off 
The service staling that the individuals who I made the arrangements-with did not 
Have authorization. . .. 
Ms. Shields stated that Bell South did not want to supply any tenants of Anthony Parks 
With phone service. 

I have experienced nothing but harassment and frustration with Bell South, and I believe 
That Bell South is acting in bad faith. 

All statements are made under penalty of perjury. 

NICK AVERSA 

WITNESS 

2/4/02 


